

Society for the Advancement of Criminology
Board Meeting Minutes
President's Conference Room, University of Southern California
March 30, 1957

[Minutes](#) [Ballot](#) [Directory of Members](#)

[Handwritten notes from the Board Meeting](#)

SOCIETY FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF CRIMINOLOGY

MINUTES: Executive Committee, 30 March 1957

The Executive Committee of the S.A.C. met on 30 March 1957 in the President's Conference Room of the Administration Building, University of Southern California, Los Angeles, California.

The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m. by President Jack Kenney. The following were present: Jack Kenney, President; Clyde Vedder, Western Vice-President; Marcel Frym, Member-at-large; William Dienststein, Secretary-Treasurer; and Samuel Jameson, member.

It was agreed that the President notify again Professor Peter Lejins, University of Maryland, of his election as Eastern Vice-President at the 1956 Annual Meeting (Fresno) and if acknowledgement is not forthcoming to declare the office vacant.

The replacement of Professor A. C. Germann as Central Vice-President was also discussed.

Donal E. J. MacNamara was appointed as S.A.C. representative to the AAAS.

C. Robert Guthrie (Fresno State College) was named chairman of the Publications Committee and Editor of the Society. To serve on the Publications Committee with Guthrie were R. L. Soule (Southern Police Institute), Vernon Fox (Florida State University), and A. L. Berke (New Jersey).

Communication was read concerning the possibility of Florida State University publishing an S.A.C. Journal. The possibility was favored by the committee and the President will investigate further.

It was recommended that the Publications Committee strive for a goal of ten issues of an S.A.C. Newsletter each year; that the Editor urge members in the initial Newsletter to submit articles through him to the Journal of Criminal Law, Criminology, and Police Science and Police; that the Editor prepare for these two journals an S.A.C. News Section and that he correspond with the editors of these journals with this purpose in mind.

An expenditure of fifteen (15) dollars was authorized as the average cost of each issue of the Newsletter.

It was further requested of the S.A.C. Editor that institutions having criminology programs be circularized and requested that a statement of objectives of programs be submitted to the S.A.C. Editor. President Kenney will prepare a covering letter to accompany this request as well as include a copy of statement of objective for the program at USC.

Frank Boolsen (Fresno State College) was authorized to bring the S.A.C. Directory of Colleges and Universities offering Criminology Programs up-to-date and prepare sufficient copies thereof for distribution to members and others. Boolsen was requested to collect bulletins and information on all criminology programs and statements of objectives.

In the discussion of media for the dissemination of S.A.C. information and articles it was decided that the following publications be considered and communication with the editors be maintained:

Police,

Journal Criminal Law, Criminology, and Police Science,

American Journal of Corrections,

Journal of Correctional Education,

NPPA Journal,

Federal Probation, and

Journal of Social Therapy (Medical Correctional Association)

Marcel Frym will communicate personally with the editors of the NPPA Journal and the Journal of Social Therapy to pave the way for the S.A.C. editor. Vedder will communicate personally with the editors of the correctional journals for the same reason.

It was approved that Gourley (LA State College) continue his committee on standardization of titles for courses as well as content with the purpose of presenting a report at the 1957 Annual Meeting.

The meeting recessed at noon for luncheon and reconvened at 1:40 p.m. at which time the name of the Society and the revision of the constitution was discussed. Suggestions and comments received from the membership were discussed and acted upon.

It was decided that the membership at the time of voting on the new constitution should vote also on which of the following three names is preferred:

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CRIMINOLOGY
AMERICAN CRIMINOLOGICAL ASSOCIATION
AMERICAN CRIMINOLOGICAL SOCIETY

It was duly moved, seconded, and unanimously carried that the redrafted constitution attached hereto be approved and presented to the membership for action thereon.

Visitors to the afternoon session included Ray Galvin, Graduate Student, USC and Col. Vincent Donahue, Commander AIR ROTC Unit, UCLA, and Graduate Student, USC.

The meeting adjourned at 5:00 p.m.

William Dienstein
Secretary-Treasurer

The Executive Committee meet on 30 March 1957 in the Conference Room of the Administration Bldg., U.S.C., Los Angeles Calif.

The meeting was called to order at 10:00 am by Pres. Jack Kenney. The following ~~officers~~ were present

- Jack Kenney, Pres.
- Clyde Vedder, Western VP
- Maurel Frym, Member at Large
- Samuel Jameson, Member
- William Shenslein, Sec-Treas

Pres. Jack Kenney notifies again

It was agreed that ~~senior~~ ^{Prof.} Peter Sejins, Univ. of Maryland, ~~be notified again of~~ his election as Eastern V.P., ^{at the 1956 annual meeting} and if ~~acknowledgment~~ is not forthcoming to declare the office vacant.

~~It was dis~~

OK. Replacement of Prof H.C. Germany, ~~Contract~~ ~~U.S. Government~~ was discussed.

Donal E. J. Mac Namara was appointed SAC representative to the AAAS.

(2)

Robert Suttie, (JSC) was named editor for the S.A.C. To serve on the publications committee with Suttie were ^{P.L.} Soule (Southern Police Institute), Vernon Fox (Florida State U.) and A.L. Berke (New Jersey).

It was decided to write to Prof. Fox about the possibility of a SAC Journal being published ~~at~~ ~~by~~ ~~that~~ Florida State U.

~~The Publication Committee was~~

It was recommended that the P.C. strive for a goal of 10 issues of a SAC Newsletter each year; that Suttie ^{urge members} ~~request~~ in the initial Newsletter ~~that members~~ to submit articles thru him to the Jr. Cr. L. & Crim and Police; that the Editor prepare for Police an SAC News Note Section and for the Jr. Cr. L. & Crim; that he correspond ^{V.A.} with Leonard, editor Police and ~~Editor-in-Chief~~ Robert H. Lawler, Editor-in-Chief, Jr. Cr. L.

An expenditure of fifteen (15) dollars was authorized ~~for~~ the average cost of each issue of the newsletters.

(3)

It was further requested that a request be sent to each institution having a program in ^{any aspect of} criminology to submit to the Editor a statement of objectives for that program. President Kenney will prepare a covering letter to accompany this request as well as include a copy of the statement of objectives for the program at USC.

Frank Boolsen (FSC) was authorized to ~~prepare additional copies of~~ ^{bring the} SAC directory up to date and prepare sufficient copies thereof. Boolsen was requested to collect bulletins and information on all crim programs and ~~maintain~~ statements of objectives.

In the discussion of vehicles for the dissemination of SAC information and articles it was decided that the following publications be considered and communications with the editors thereof be maintained:

POLICE (gen'l law enf.)

Journ Crim Law & Crim (correction & gen'l crim)

Am Journ Corrections

Journ Correctional Educ

NPPA Journal

Federal Probation

Journ Social Therapy (Med. Corrections Assoc)

Marcel will communicate personally with the editors of the NPPA journal and the Journ of Social Therapy to pave way for the SAC Editor. Vedder will communicate personally with the editors of the Corrections Journals for the same reason.

It was decided that Sourley continue his ~~efforts~~ ^{committee} on standardization of subject content under standardized titles with the purpose of presenting a report at the 1957 annual meeting.

The meeting recessed at noon for luncheon and reconvened at 1:40 pm at which time the name of the Society was discussed and the redraft of the proposed Constitution prepared. Suggestions and comments ^{received} from the members were discussed and acted upon.

It was decided that the membership vote on the following new names for the Society:

American Society of Criminology
American Criminological Association

~~Attached hereto is a copy of the redrafted
Constitution as presented by the Executive
fraction by the membership.~~

~~The meeting adjourned at 4:30 pm.~~

~~It was moved by Hadden~~

It was duly moved, seconded, and unanimously
carried that the redrafted Constitution attached
hereto be approved and presented to the
membership for action thereon.

SOCIETY FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF CRIMINOLOGY

MINUTES: Executive Committee, 30 March 1957

The Executive Committee of the SAC met on 30 March 1957 in the Conference Room of the Administration Building, University of Southern California, Los Angeles, California.

The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m. by President Jack Kenney. The following were present: Jack Kenney, President; Clyde Vedder, Western Vice-President; Marcel Frym, Member-at-large; William Dienstein, Secretary-treasurer; and Samuel Jameson, member.

It was agreed that the President notify again Prof. Peter Lehins, University of Maryland, of his election as Eastern Vice-President at the 1956 Annual Meeting (Fresno) and if acknowledgement is not forthcoming to declare the office vacant.

The replacement of Prof. A.C. Germann as Central Vice-President was also discussed.

Donal E.J. MacNamara was appointed as SAC representative to the AAAS.

C. Robert Guthrie (Fresno State College) was named chairman of the Publications Committee and Editor of the Society. To serve on the publications committee with Guthrie were R.L. Soule (Southern Police Institute), Vernon Fox (Florida State Univ.), and A.L. Berke (New Jersey).

Communication was read concerning the possibility of Florida State U publishing an SAC Journal. The possibility was favored by the committee and the President will investigate further.

It was recommended that the Publications Committee strive for a goal of 10 issues of an SAC Newsletter each year; that the Editor urge members in the initial Newsletter to submit articles through him to the Journal of Criminal Law, Criminology, and Police Science and Police; that the Editor prepare for these two journals an SAC News Section and that he correspond with the editors of these journals with this purpose in mind.

An expenditure of fifteen (15) dollars was authorized as the average cost of each issue of the Newsletter.

It was further requested of the SAC Editor that institutions having criminology programs be circularized and requested that a statement of objectives of programs be submitted to the SAC Editor. President Kenney will prepare a covering letter to accompany this request as well as include a copy of statement of objective for the program at USC.

Frank Boolsen (Fresno State College) was authorized to bring the SAC Directory of Colleges and Universities offering Criminology Programs up-to-date and prepare sufficient copies thereof for distribution to members and others. Boolsen was requested to collect bulletins and information on all criminology programs and statements of objectives.

In the discussion of media for the dissemination of SAC information and articles it was decided that the following publications be considered and communication with the editors be maintained:

Police, Journal Criminal Law, Criminology, and Police Science, American Journal of Corrections, Journal of Correctional Education, NPPA Journal, Federal Probation, and Journal of Social Therapy (Medical Correctional Assoc.)

Marcel Frym will communicate personally with the editors of the NPPA Journal and the Journal of Social Therapy to pave the way for the SAC editor. Vedder will communicate personally with the editors of the correctional journals for the same reason.

It was approved that Gourley (LA State College) continue his committee on standardization of titles for courses as well as content, with the purpose of presenting a report at the 1957 Annual Meeting.

The meeting recessed at noon for luncheon and reconvened at 1:40 p.m. at which time the name of the Society ~~was discussed~~ and the revision of the constitution ~~was~~ was discussed. Suggestions and comments received from the membership were discussed and acted upon.

It was decided that the membership at the time of voting on the new constitution should vote also on which of the following ~~two~~ ^{three} names is preferred:

- 1 AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CRIMINOLOGY
- 2 AMERICAN CRIMINOLOGICAL ASSOCIATION (SOCIETY)
- 3 " " "

It was duly moved, seconded, and unanimously carried that the redrafted constitution attached hereto be approved and presented to the membership for action thereon.

The meeting adjourned at ~~4:30 p.m.~~ 5:00 p.m.

Note: Visitors to the Afternoon Session included Ray Galvin Graduate student U.S.C. and Col. Vincent Donahue, Commander AIR ROTC Unit, U.C.L.A. and graduate student, USC.

Respectfully submitted

William Dienstein
Secretary-Treasurer

BALLOT

Approve new constitution	<input type="checkbox"/>
Reject new constitution	<input type="checkbox"/>
<u>Vote for one organization name:</u>	
American Society of Criminology	<input type="checkbox"/>
American Criminological Society	<input type="checkbox"/>
American Criminological Association	<input type="checkbox"/>

Place ballot in statement envelope enclosed, affix stamp,
and mail as soon as possible.

Please sign your name in space for return address.

DIRECTORY

- Barker, W. R., Dr., Director, Police Administration, Los Angeles City College,
Vermont Avenue, Los Angeles 29, California
- Bell, Leonard, Major (01796407) U. S. Army M. P. Crime Lab, A.P.O. 757, New York,
New York, (Commanding Officer)
- Bennett, Donald J., 8319 - 2nd Avenue, Inglewood 4, California, (Lieutenant
L.A.P.D., Lecturer, Police Administration, Los Angeles State College,
Los Angeles 29, California)
- Berke, Arthur L., 225 Crestview Drive, Red Bank (Middletown), New Jersey
- Boolsen, Frank, Chairman, Criminology Department, Fresno State College, Fresno 26,
California
- Bradford, Lowell W., Laboratory of Criminalistics, Office of District Attorney,
Court House, San Jose, California
- Brandstatter, Arthur, Director, School of Police Administration and Public Safety,
Michigan State University, East Lansing, Michigan
- Brannon, Bernard C., Chief of Police, Kansas City, Missouri
- Carr, Jesse, M.D., University of California Pathology, San Francisco City and
County Hospital, 22nd and Potrero, San Francisco 10, California
- Cooper, Gary E., Shasta College, Redding, California, (Law Enforcement Program)
- Dienstein, William, Associate Professor Social Science and Criminology, Fresno
State College, Fresno 26, California
- Fabian, F. M., Department of Police Science and Administration, Washington State
College, Pullman, Washington
- Fitzgerald, Fred, 2035 - 22nd Avenue, San Francisco, California, (Director of
Law Enforcement Program, City College of San Francisco, San Francisco,
California)
- Fox, Vernon, Professor, Florida State University, Tallahassee, Florida
- Frym, Marcel, Dr., Director Criminological Research, The Hacker Foundation,
160 Lasky Drive, Beverly Hills, California
- Fulton, James, 2331 Ronda Vista Drive, Los Angeles 27, California, (Capt. L.A.P.D.,
Lecturer, Police Administration, Los Angeles State College,
Los Angeles, California)
- Gammage, Allen Z., 2613 Patton Way, Sacramento, California, (Supervisor, Law
Enforcement Training, Sacramento State College, Sacramento, California)
- Germann, A. C., Dr., 636 Cherry Lane, East Lansing, Michigan, (Assistant Professor,
School of Police Administration and Public Safety, Michigan State
University, East Lansing, Michigan)

- Glavas, B. James, Commander of Juvenile Division, 150 North Los Angeles Street, Los Angeles 12, California, (Capt. L.A.P.D., Lecturer Police Administration, Los Angeles State College, Los Angeles 29, California)
- Gourley, G. Douglas, 1611 Selby Avenue, Los Angeles 24, California, (Captain L.A.P.D., Lecturer, Police Administration, University of Southern California, Los Angeles, California)
- Guthrie, C. Robert, 3539 Van Ness Boulevard, Fresno 4, California, (Assistant Professor, Department of Criminology, Fresno State College, Fresno 26, California)
- Hankey, Richard O., Director, Law Enforcement Training, College of the Sequoias, Visalia, California
- Harris, John L., 510 South Spring Street, Los Angeles, California, (Examiner of Questioned Documents, Lecturer, Police Administration, University of Southern California, Los Angeles, California)
- Jameson, Samuel H., Dr., 750 Pacific Electric Building, Los Angeles 14, California
- Kelley, Douglas, M.D., 44 Highgate Road, Berkeley 7, California, (Professor, School of Criminology, University of California, Berkeley 4, California)
- Kenney, John P., 5347 Stillwater Drive, Los Angeles 56, California, (Coordinator, Police Administration Program, University of Southern California, Los Angeles 7, California)
- Kidd, A. M., Professor of Law (retired), University of California, Berkeley 4, California
- Kirk, Paul L., Dr., Life Science Building, University of California, Berkeley 4, California
- Klinger, Julius H., Dr., 1256 Page Street, San Francisco 17, California
- Kooker, Don L., 706 East University, Bloomington, Indiana, (Associate Professor, Police Administration, Indiana University, Bloomington, Indiana)
- Kreml, Frank, Traffic Institute, Northwestern University, Evanston, Illinois
- Kristovich, Peter, 2512 East Balfour Avenue, Fullerton, California, (Sears Roebuck and Company)
- Leonard, V. A., Dr., Post Office Box 837, College Station, Pullman, Washington, (Professor, Police Administration, Washington State College, Pullman, Washington)
- Lewis, Jim, Deputy Chief, Far East Division, Civil Police Administration, 1220 Maiatico Building, Washington 25, D.C.
- MacCormick, Austin, Professor of Criminology, School of Criminology, University of California, Berkeley 4, California

- MacNamara, Donal E. J., Dean, New York Institute of Criminology, Room 200,
40 East 40th Street, New York 16, New York
- Martin, C. Gordon, Dr., 3614 Fairmount Avenue, Dallas, Texas, (Baylor University)
- Martin, Don A., 3810 Westside Avenue, Los Angeles 8, California, (Capt. L.A.P.D.,
Lecturer, Police Administration, University of Southern California,
Los Angeles 7, California)
- McCall, Donald F., 501 Darrow Street, Pullman Washington, (Chairman, Department
of Police Science and Administration, Washington State College,
Pullman, Washington)
- McCandless, David, Director, Southern Police Institute, University of Louisville,
Louisville 8, Kentucky
- McRae, Ralph I., Dr., 3542 Asbury, Dallas 5, Texas, (Baylor University)
- Melnicoe, William B., 2411 Wittkop Way, Sacramento 25, California, (Assistant
Professor, Law Enforcement, Sacramento State College, Sacramento,
California)
- Miller, Melvin H., 14403 New Jersey, Cambrian Park, California
- Myren, Richard A., 107 North Union Street, Bloomington, Indiana, (Assistant
Professor, Department of Police Administration, Indiana University,
Bloomington, Indiana)
- Newman, Charles L., Assistant Professor, School of Social Welfare, Program in
Corrections, Florida State University, Tallahassee, Florida
- Panton, James H., 1713 Oberlin Road, Raleigh, North Carolina
- Perkins, Rollin, Cornell Professor of Law, UCLA Law School, University of
California at Los Angeles, Los Angeles, California
- Reinhardt, James, Professor, Division of Criminology (SS102 A), University of
Nebraska, Lincoln, Nebraska
- Ryppen, Jack Edward, 418 Munsey Building, Baltimore 2, Maryland, (Private
Investigator)
- Schmidt, Willard E., Director, Police Administration, San Jose State College,
San Jose, California
- Scott, Robert H., Department of Corrections, Youth Division, Box 212-A, Station A,
Lansing 26, Michigan
- Seares, R. S., Chief of Police, 2200 Huntington Drive, San Marino, California
- Simon, Ricard, Deputy Chief of Police, L.A.P.D., Commander, Bureau of
Administration, Department of Police, 150 North Los Angeles Street,
Los Angeles 12, California
- Soule, R. L., Associate Director, Southern Police Institute, University of
Louisville, Louisville 8, Kentucky

- Spindler, Warren W., Route 1 Box 41, Carmel, California, (Law Enforcement Program,
Monterey Peninsula College, Monterey, California)
- Tappan, Paul W., 78 Knickerbocker Road, Tenafly, New Jersey
- Thomas, Charles C., 301-327 East Lawrence Avenue, Springfield, Illinois
- Turner, Ralph, School of Police Administration and Public Safety, Michigan State
University, East Lansing, Michigan
- Van der Meulen, L. J., Dr., District Commander, Netherlands Station,
Hogerbeetsstraat 5, Wassenaar (Holland), The Hague, Netherlands
- Vedder, Clyde B., Dr., Department of Sociology, University of Arizona, Tuscon,
Arizona
- Velez, Pedro M., Sr., Director Fiscal Investigations, Department of the Treasury,
Box 4515, San Juan, Puerto Rico
- Williams, John Ball, 450 Sequoia Drive, Pasadena 2, California, (Lieutenant,
L.A.P.D., Lecturer, Police Administration, University of Southern
California, Los Angeles, California)
- Wilson, O. W., Dean, School of Criminology, University of California, Berkeley 4,
California